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WorkSource Montgomery – Workforce Recovery Network 
Responses to Bidder’s Questions 

February 11, 2022 

Topic Question Response 

Administrative Costs 
Please explain the 10% administrative costs terms, what 
is considered administrative costs? 

Up to 10% of the requested funds may be utilized for 
administrative costs. Administrative costs are costs 
that are not related to the direct provision of services 
to participants and employers. The costs can be both 
personnel and non-personnel. Examples may include 
but are not limited to costs associated with systems 
and functions related to accounting, financial, 
property management, personnel management, 
payroll, and monitoring, etc.  

Administrative Costs 

Given the reporting requirements, would WSM find it 
acceptable to dedicate a portion of the grant award to 
part-time administrative/data collection assistance. This 
would be considered a programmatic expense. 

Please propose a staffing plan that will best position 
your organization to achieve the goals/deliverables for 
your initiative. 

Allowable Activities 

Would an applicant be able to submit a funding request 
to support an existing case management model that 
prioritizes vulnerable populations who struggle to obtain 
work using mainstream workforce development services, 
or are you requesting that all applicants come up with a 
new innovation to support clients? 

WSM encourages creativity and innovation, however 
applicants can certainly submit proposals for existing, 
successful programs and models.  

Allowable Activities 

Is it possible to be a subcontractor in more than one 
proposal? Can we be a primary provider in one proposal 
and a secondary/subcontractor in another submission? 

Yes, subcontractors may be included in more than one 
proposal. WSM requests that organizations identify all 
proposals in which they are included.  
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Topic Question Response 

Allowable Activities 

Is there a preference given for any specific career fields 
or types of jobs within career fields?  Will training 
programs in line with Montgomery County's workforce 
initiatives be given precedence among the candidates 
under review? 

WSM is interested in supporting employment across 
diverse industries and occupations. If your proposal 
effectively states a need and a clear path to mitigate 
that need, we would be open to funding that effort. 

Budget 

Is there limitation or a set percentage of a budget that 
will go to a sub-awardee in case two or more 
organizations partner? 

No, there is not a limitation or set percentage for sub-
awardees.  

Contracting 
Is this RFP following the minority contracting guidelines 
or subject to the county guidelines? 

WSM remains committed to awarding the best 
proposals with innovative projects that best serve the 
diverse populations in the community. This solicitation 
supports eligible entities that qualify as nonprofit 
organizations. A nonprofit organization is one that 
qualifies for tax exemption status with the IRS because 
their mission and vision furthers a social cause and 
provides a public benefit. The Minority Business 
Enterprise (MBE) designation is one that only applies 
to for-profit entities. 

Cost-Reimbursement 
Please describe the monthly reimbursement process.  
Give examples of documentation requirements. 

Grantees will submit invoices monthly. If all 
documentation is in order, grantees can expect 
payment within 30 days. Examples of supporting 
documentation for payroll costs and non-payroll costs 
may include payroll registers, receipts, and bill 
summaries that details components reflecting costs 
used on the project. 

Cost-Reimbursement 
Just confirming, the reimbursement timing is 30 days, 
correct? 

Grantees will submit invoices monthly. If all 
documentation is in order, grantees can expect 
payment within 30 days. 
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Topic Question Response 

Cost-Reimbursement 
Does the funding allow for 30 day cash advancement for 
the first month to get started? 

Upon request, WSM is willing to do a 10% 
advancement for the first month with supporting 
documentation. Bidders should include this request in 
the Financial & Fiscal Capabilities section of their 
proposal. WSM will negotiate the details during the 
contracting process with the grantee. 

Cost-Reimbursement 

We understand that Montgomery County does not want 
to fund start-ups and that expenses will be reimbursed.  
If we are awarded this grant, we are likely to double the 
number of trainees in the program.  However, we will 
face some immediate program costs.  Would you please 
consider releasing 10% of the funds up front, to cover 
these costs? Otherwise, we may have to dip into our 
reserves. 

Upon request, WSM is willing to do a 10% 
advancement for the first month with supporting 
documentation. Bidders should include this request in 
the Financial & Fiscal Capabilities section of their 
proposal. WSM will negotiate the details during the 
contracting process with the grantee. 

COVID-Impact 
Define negatively impacted by the COVID19 pandemics?  
What will be considered evidence? 

Self-attestation of the participant that he, she, or their 
household was negatively impacted. US Dept of 
Treasury presumes the following households and 
community are impacted by the pandemic: low or 
moderate income households or communities, 
households that experienced unemployment, 
households that experienced increased food or 
housing insecurity, households that qualify for the 
Children's Health Insurance Program, Childcare 
subsidies through the Child Care Development Fund 
(CCDF) Program, or Medicaid. Households that qualify 
for one of these presumptions are presumed 
impacted. For additional information, organizations 
may refer to the US Treasury Final Rule. 
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-
Final-Rule.pdf  

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Final-Rule.pdf
https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Final-Rule.pdf
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Topic Question Response 

Data Systems and 
Reporting 

Should we include WSM edge data system in proposed 
budget? Or is this a tool that is provided to successful 
bidders? 

No, WSM will provide access to WSM Edge at no cost 
to the grantees. WSM will also provide training and 
technical assistance on using the system.  

Data Systems and 
Reporting 

Please explain to what extent the WDM Data System 
requirements are?  Would this require additional staff 
for us - should we build this into the budget as well? 

Grantees will be required to enter data into WSM 
Edge. WSM will provide access to WSM Edge at no 
cost to the successful bidders. WSM will also provide 
training and technical assistance on using the system. 
WSM anticipates the data entry will be minimal. 

Data Systems and 
Reporting 

Could you explain what is the WSM Edge data System?  
We need training to manage the system? 

WSM Edge is the case management system utilized by 
WSM to track participant information, activities, and 
outcomes. WSM will provide access to WSM Edge at 
no cost to the successful bidders. WSM will also 
provide training and technical assistance on using the 
system.  

Data Systems and 
Reporting 

Can you describe the reporting requirements - number 
of forms, types of data, etc.?  Trying to understand the 
administrative burden and how to price it into the 
proposal. 

All projects awarded will have reporting requirements 
based on the scope of work defined in the proposal 
application. Grantees will be required to enter data in 
WSM Edge and provide quarterly narrative reports as 
described in the RFP.  

Data Systems and 
Reporting 

Please provide further description of the reporting 
requirements for administrative budgeting. 

Based on the project innovation and deliverables, 
reporting outcome requirements will be negotiated 
with WSM during contracting. 

Data Systems and 
Reporting 

Could you clarify what information/data you would like 
grant recipients to submit each month for monthly 
reporting? Would it be possible for us to see a 
screenshot of the reporting portal? Successful bidders will be trained on the WSM portal. 

Eligible Participants 

In addition to serving Montgomery County residents, can 
this grant help individuals in DC, VA, and non-
Montgomery County MD residents? 

No, the purpose of this funding is to assist 
Montgomery County residents.  
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Topic 

 
Question  Response 

Eligible Participants Is it allowable to serve immigrant participants? 

WSM welcomes proposals that serve immigrant 
populations, however federal regulations require that 
program participants are able produce documentation 
of legal immigration status. 

Eligible Participants 
Can we include working with individuals who do not 
have work permits or green cards in our scope of work? 

WSM welcomes proposals that serve immigrant 
populations, however federal regulations require that 
program participants can produce documentation of 
legal immigration status. 

Eligible Participants 
Is there income eligibility requirements for the 
participants served? 

No, participants must have been negatively impacted 
by COVID. However, WSM understands the pandemic 
has disproportionally impacted traditionally 
underserved communities. 

Equipment 

Please provide a definition of what is considered 
equipment?  Is computers, laptops, iPads, software 
considered equipment? 

WSM recognizes that some personal technology 
resources may be needed to achieve program goals. 
Durable equipment costing more than $5,000 or other 
large capital investments will not be approved for 
funding. 

Financials  Are matching funds required? 

No, matching funds are not required and will not be 
considered in the scoring. However, applicants are 
welcome to include information about additional 
funds that are being leveraging to support the 
proposed programs and services.  

Financial Statement 

Can financial review report be submitted in leu of audit 
report for organizations that are doing good work in the 
community but do not have an audit report? 

Providing the two most recent years of filed Form 990s 
and the IRS 501-C-3 determination letter will be 
sufficient for applicants without an audit report.  For 
those with an audit report, two years of audits, Form 
990s and determination letters is the minimum 
requirement. 
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Topic 

 
Question  Response 

Financial Statements 
Will you accept 990's or other financial documents in lieu 
of audited financial statements? 

Providing the two most recent years of filed Form 990s 
and the IRS 501-C-3 determination letter will be 
sufficient for applicants without an audit report.  For 
those with an audit report, two years of audits, Form 
990s and determination letters is the minimum 
requirement. 

Financial Statements 
What can we submit in lieu of audited financial 
statements? 

Providing the two most recent years of filed Form 990s 
and the IRS 501-C-3 determination letter will be 
sufficient for applicants without an audit report.  For 
those with an audit report, two years of audits, Form 
990s and determination letters is the minimum 
requirement. 

Financial Statements 

Will you accept the IRS 990 form, or some other financial 
information, in place of an Audit Report?  

Providing the two most recent years of filed Form 990s 
and the IRS 501-C-3 determination letter will be 
sufficient for applicants without an audit report.  For 
those with an audit report, two years of audits, Form 
990s and determination letters is the minimum 
requirement. 

Financial Statements 

Do you want our IRS 501c(3) determination letter of 
Incorporation as an attachment to our application 
package? 

Yes, please include the IRS 501c(3) determination 
letter as an attachment.  

Financial Statements 

Do you require both the IRS 501 (C) 3 Determination 
Letter and the Article of Incorporation from a nonprofit 
organization?  

Bidders should include the IRS 501c(3) determination 
letter. The Article of Incorporation is not necessary.  

General Will the bidders conference recording be available? 

Yes, the recording will be available on the 
procurement page. https://www.tpma-
inc.com/procurement-worksource-montgomery/   

General 

Will the recordings of the bidder’s conference held 
virtually on February 2, 2022 be made available? 

Yes, the recording will be available on the 
procurement page. https://www.tpma-
inc.com/procurement-worksource-montgomery/   

https://www.tpma-inc.com/procurement-worksource-montgomery/
https://www.tpma-inc.com/procurement-worksource-montgomery/
https://www.tpma-inc.com/procurement-worksource-montgomery/
https://www.tpma-inc.com/procurement-worksource-montgomery/
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Topic 

 
Question  Response 

Non-Profit/For-Profit 

Will you please consider allowing for-profit companies to 
apply for these funds as independent entities?  If we 
have to apply as a partner with a non-profit, I am 
concerned that the 10% limit on funds for program 
administration will not be attractive enough to allow us 
to secure a good partner.  Additionally, I believe that our 
company can manage the reporting and financial 
requirements as well as our non-profit partners can. 

No, applicants to this opportunity must be non-profit 
organizations.  

Non-Profit/For-Profit 

Are non-profit organizations able to partner with a for 
profit organization in order to complete the work of the 
RFP?  

Yes, non-profit organizations may partner with a for-
profit organization to complete the work. It is 
important to note that the non-profit organization will 
be the recipient and fiduciary agent thus liable for 
grant deliverables. 

Non-Profit/For-Profit 

How much work does the non-profit organization have 
to complete? 

Nonprofit organizations serve as the grant recipient 
and fiduciary agent and will be liable for all grant 
deliverables. 

Non-Profit/For-Profit 

How much work can the for-profit organization provide 
in the wake of this partnership?  

The non-profit grant recipient is liable for 100% of the 
grant deliverables being met. 

Non-Profit/For-Profit 
Can a nonprofit partner with a for profit organization? 
And Vise versa? 

Yes, non-profit organizations may partner with a for-
profit organization to complete the work. It is 
important to note that the non-profit organization will 
be the recipient and fiduciary agent thus liable for 
grant deliverables. 

Programming 

You’re looking to serve people listed under the Examples 
of innovative Workforce Recovery Network projects. Do 
you have any population estimates for these various 
categories and or total potential people to service? 

Please propose the number of participants you plan to 
serve based on the need. Please refer to the 
Statement of Need and Program Service Delivery 
Model sections of the RFP.  

Programming 

A lot of Examples of innovative Workforce Recovery 
Network projects were mentioned, is there any guidance 
re the total participants per segment and/or in total? 

Please propose the number of participants you plan to 
serve based on the need. Please refer to the 
Statement of Need and Program Service Delivery 
Model sections of the RFP.  
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Topic 
 

Question  Response 

Programming 

I understand that the grant's purpose is to provide funds 
for vocational training and job connections for clients. 
We are looking to provide part-time positions for people 
with the funds awarded from the grant. Is this something 
that is in line with the expectations? If not, please let me 
know because we appreciate any kind of clarification you 
can provide. 

If your program requires hiring staff, then please 
propose that as part of your application. Additionally, 
you may be interested in the WSM Grant Relief for On-
Boarding Workers (GROW) Program. Information 
about the GROW program can be found at 
https://worksourcemontgomery.com/covid-19-
recovery/.  

Programming 
Can the funding support hiring youth that will provide 
community services (hiring youth)? 

If your program requires hiring youth, then please 
propose that as part of your application.  

Programming 
Can the funds be used for start up costs for new 
programs of services? 

Yes, funds can be used by existing non-profit 
organizations to establish new programmatic 
components.   

Programming 

Can you give an example of the kind of program that 
would create disincentives to providing services to 
individuals with barriers to employment? 

Please see pages 4 and 5 of the RFP for examples of 
innovative programs.  

Programming 

Participants in our program often hit important 
milestones in the second year of the program.  Since the 
grant is for one year with an option for a second year, 
should our application focus on any one of the following: 
a) one set of trainees in year one, hitting basic 
milestones, and the same trainees in the second year 
option hitting more advanced milestones. b) one set of 
trainees in year one, hitting basic milestones, and a 
second set of trainees in year two, hitting the same basic 
milestones. c) a two-year program compressed into one 
year with applications for this compressed program in 
both the initial and optional year. d) an application that 
covers both years. 

Please see page 6 of the RFP, Year 2 funding is subject 
to performance and fund availability, the selected 
vendor(s) may be subject to one year extension with 
an updated budget subject to WSM approval. 

Programming  

If we are upscaling current programs with this funding, 
how will continuation funding be supported.  We are 
thinking of a 2 year program. 

Please see page 6 of the RFP, Year 2 funding is subject 
to performance and fund availability, the selected 
vendor(s) may be subject to one year extension with 
an updated budget subject to WSM approval. 

https://worksourcemontgomery.com/covid-19-recovery/
https://worksourcemontgomery.com/covid-19-recovery/
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Topic 
 

Question  Response 

Programming 
Are cultural, linguistic and experiential competencies key 
criteria given the diversity of the county? 

WSM is interested in programming that will aid in the 
economic recovery of Montgomery County from the 
pandemic. We remain committed to working with all 
communities, particularly those traditionally 
underserved communities, in our county. 

References 

Do you want the list of three references and three letters 
of reference or will the list of three references complete 
our package submittal? 

Yes, please provide 3 reference letters and include the 
contact information for the references in Attachment 
D. The references identified on Attachment D should 
match the reference letters. 

RFP Structure 
Does the 15 page narrative include the attachments or 
without? 

The 15-page Scope of Work/Project Narrative does not 
include attachments.  

RFP Structure 

Please confirm that the Narrative should be limited to 15 
pages. Attachments to the application do not count 
toward this total page count.  

Yes, the Scope of Work/Proposal Narrative is limited to 
15 pages. Attachments do not count toward this total 
page count.  

RFP Structure 

Will you extend the deadline by two weeks given that 
many key questions will not be answered until February 
11th?  

To allow for adequate time for reviewing, scoring, and 
contracting, WSM is not extending the deadline. All 
proposals are due February 28, 2022, at 9:00 AM 
Eastern time.  

RFP Structure  

Attachment D - The instructions say “List the agency 
contact information for all current contracts or contracts 
for the past 3 years.”   We assume you mean you want 
contracts with program officers from funding agencies 
that have contracts with us, correct? And, we have 
many, in several different departments. Is it OK if we 
provide the list of contacts for contracts related to our 
workforce program? Or do we have to collect them from 
all the other departments as well? 

Yes, providing a list of contacts for contracts related to 
your workforce program is sufficient.  

 

 


